HIGHWAY COMMITTEE MINUTES

DATE: November 10, 2025

LOCATION: Kendall County Highway Department

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Jason Peterson, Dan Koukol, Scott Gengler, and Brooke Shanley
STAFF PRESENT: Michele Riley, John Burscheid, and Francis Klaas

ALSO PRESENT:

The committee meeting convened at 3:37 P.M. with roll call of committee members. Bachmann
absent. Quorum established.

Motion Shanley; second Koukol, to approve the agenda. Motion approved unanimously.

Motion Gengler; second Koukol, to approve the Highway Committee minutes from October 14,
2025. Motion approved unanimously.

Motion Shanley; second Gengler, to recommend approval of the low bid of $82,308 from
Arneson Oil Company for the annual purchase of 12,000 gallons of unleaded gas and 20,000
gallons of diesel fuel for FY 2026. Bid results from 3 bidders were presented to the Committee.
Peterson asked if the low bidder was who we had last year. Klaas indicated that Grainco FS was
low bidder last year, but Arneson was the low bidder the year before that. So the two suppliers
have been alternating low bids recently. J.T. Barrier, LLC has never submitted a bid before.
Shanley asked if there was anyone that Highway Department preferred. Klaas indicated that
they have not had any real issues with either vendor. Motion approved unanimously by voice
vote.

Motion Shanley; second Gengler, to recommend approval of a petition from Oswego Road
District for County aid to build or repair bridge, culvert or drainage structure on Reservation
Road. Koukol wondered why the County would give the Road District anything until they clean
up 1539 Collins Road. Klaas described the project, indicating that the construction would be
paid using Township Bridge Program Funds (State Funds). The soft costs, including engineering
and land acquisition, would typically be split between County and Road District because there
aren’t enough TBP monies to fund everything. Koukol asked if Klaas had an opportunity to talk
to the Highway Commissioner last week about Collins Road. Klaas spoke with him and stated
that the Commissioner has an attorney working on the problem. Koukol thought that had been
the excuse for many months. Klaas indicated that the commissioner is an elected official and he
can’t tell him what to do. Klaas and Koukol agreed that if this was a County Highway, the
problem would be solved tomorrow. Koukol wondered if the Committee could delay action on
the petition as an incentive to get the Highway Commissioner motivated on Collins Road.
Motion to table was offered by Koukol. Shanley asked if there would be any impact on the
process if the petition was delayed. Klaas explained the process for paying for the project and
indicated that there wasn’t any urgency to approve the petition. He added there might have been
a budgeting problem on the Township’s side and so they (the township) might want to do a
progress billing to the County, hence the reason for the petition coming to the County now.
Second to table by Shanley. Koukol and Shanley voted yes to table. Gengler and Peterson voted
no. Motion to table failed. Vote on the original motion was the same. Motion failed.

Page 1 of 3



Motion Shanley; second Gengler, to recommend approval of the 2025-2045 Long-Range
Transportation Plan. Peterson asked if any of the Townships had seen the Plan. Klaas indicated
that the County doesn’t really reach out to the Townships in regard to the Long Range Plan.
Committee members discussed several projects included in the Plan, including the proposed
roundabout at the Galena Road — Little Rock Road intersection. Gengler was looking forward to
the widening of the Orchard Road Bridge. Klaas spoke about what he thought was the real
problem with that area, that being the intersections on either side of the bridge, and more
specifically, the northbound left turns at U.S. Route 34. Gengler wondered who would be the
lead agency for this project, since two State Highways are involved. Klaas thought if the County
initiated the project, they would likely be the lead agency. Committee agreed that it might be a
good idea to initiate a traffic engineering study in advance of the 2029 build date programmed in
the 5-Year Plan. Motion approved unanimously by voice vote.

In Other Business, Gengler asked Koukol what the issue was at 1539 Collins Road. Koukol
described how the property owner has installed many metal fence posts along the north side of
Collins Road. It is interfering with farmers driving combines down Collins Road and creating
safety issues for traffic in that area. Klaas thought the problem was that the Township only has
prescriptive right-of-way for Collins Road. The property owner has underlying title to the center
of the road and is asserting his mistaken belief that he can install fence posts in the clear zone.
This is creating some uncertainty on the township’s part, so they have enrolled an attorney to
look into the problem; however, this has been dragging on for a very long time. Koukol thought
it was a public nuisance and the owner is intentionally dragging matters out in court. Koukol
thought the matter needed to be addressed right away.

Motion Gengler; second Shanley, to forward Highway Department bills for the month of
November in the amount of $518,972.80 to the Finance Committee for approval.

Gengler asked how the Highway Department was doing in regard to equipment. Klaas indicated
that they were in good shape. Gengler also asked about the liquid product that is being put on
County bridges. Klaas said that it is a corn byproduct that keeps the frost off the bridges.
Gengler asked how the Department purchases this product. Klaas stated that he buys it by the
tote from a company in Geneseo called SNI. It is not diluted and is applied by a spray applicator
in streaks so that it doesn’t make the bridge decks slippery. Gengler asked if the townships use
this product. Burscheid did not think that they do. Klaas added that the townships don’t
generally have any long bridges, so the application isn’t really necessary. IDOT uses straight
brine on their bridge decks and roadways.

Motion Koukol; second Gengler, to adjourn the meeting at 4:03 PM. Motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Francis C. Klaas, P.E.
Kendall County Engineer

Page 2 of 3



Action Items

1. Approve the low bid of $82,308 from Arneson Oil Company for the annual purchase of
12,000 gallons of unleaded gas and 20,000 gallons of diesel fuel for FY 2026

2. Approve the 2025 — 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan

Page 3 of 3



